
1541st meeting-29 October 1973 161 

89. Secondly, Israel did sell arms to South Africa; at 
the twenty-seventh session the Israeli representative in 
the Fourth Committee had acknowledged that his coun­
try was supplying to the South African Government 
Arava aircraft, whose specifications indicated that they 
were to be used for military purposes. Attention had 
been drawn to Israel's close co-operation with the ra­
cist regime of South Africa once again when the South 
African Minister of Defence had declared to the Israeli 
Zionists after their aggression of 6 October that the 
people of South Africa sympathized with the struggle of 
the Israeli people and that his Government was pre­
pared to offer assistance to Israel. 

90. The General Assembly had adopted a resolution 
barring assistance to the racist regimes of South Africa, 
Portugal and Southern Rhodesia; his delegation merely 
asked that Israel should be treated in the same way for 
the two reasons that he had just cited. 

91. With regard to the question of aggression, the 
facts were known to all; everyone knew that Israel had 
launched its aggression against Egypt at a place where 
the Egyptians intended to build a new pipeline, 
likewise, everyone knew who had already launched the 
previous aggressions of 1956 and 1967. 
92. Mr. ELIASHIV (Israel) said that that long state­
ment was typical of the propaganda in which the Arab 
delegations indulged in all the organs of the United 
Nations at the cost of the work in progress. He would 
merely reject once again all the calumnies and lies 
which inade up that propaganda of the baseless allega­
tions of Israeli aggression. 
93. The CHAIRMAN announced that the delegations 
of Jordan and Malaysia had asked to join the sponsors 
of draft resolution A/C.2/L.l293 and the delegations of 
Afghanistan, Iran, Mali, Uruguay and Zaire to join the 
sponsors of draft resolution A/C.2/L.1294. 

The meeting rose at 6.55 p.m. 

1541 st meeting 
Monday, 29 October 1973, at 10.55 a.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Zewde GABRE-SBLLASSIE (Ethiopia). 

AGENDA ITEM 48 

United Nations Indu!ltrial Development Organization 
(continued) (A/9003 and Corr.1, chap. XII; A/9016, · 
A/9072, A/C.2/L.1292-1294): . 

(a) Report of the Industrial Development Board; 
(brSecorid General Conference of the United Nations 

· Industrial Development Organizatiom report of the 
Executive director · . 

1. Mr. SADEGHI-YARANDY (Iran) said that few 
international organizations revealed more clearly th(tn 
UNIDO the problems involyed in attaining the aspira­
tions of the developing countries for a better life .. How· 
ever, the financial resources available to UNIDO had 
allowed only modest success thus .. far., In absolute 
terins, the funds spent through UNIDO were negligible 
even when compared to the lever·of spending by the 
developing countries themselves. in the. field of indus­
trialization. The establishment of a United Nations in­
dustrial development fund, as r.ecorhmended by the 
Industrial Development Board in its decision II (VII) 
(see A/9016, annex II), would strengthen the financial 
capabilities of the .org~nization. The decision of the 
Board (decision I (VII)) to increase the phmning level 
and budget of the UNIDO. regular programme of tech­
nical assistance from $1.5 million to $2 million was a 
reasonable one. 

i His delegation had also noted with great satisfac­
tion the increase in the over-all operational activities of 
UNIDO in 1972 and in UNIDO's share of UNDP re­
sources. Considering the organiz,ational implications of 
its extended responsibilities in the future,UNIDO must 
have greater administrative q.nd financial autonomy. 
The examination of the question of the separate prep-

A/C.2/SR.I541 

. aration of the programme and budget of UNIDO and 
their submission to the General Assembly, and of 
UNIDO's independence in the allocation of its re­
sources and publications programme, would be of great 
help in ensuring such autonomy. 
3. The search for a long-range strategy for UNIDO 
reflected the organization's concern for relevance and 
its commitment to the rational formulation of industrial 
policies in the developing countries. The recommenda­
tions of the Group of High-Level Experts (ibid., 
chap. IV) contained the fundamental elements of such 
a strategy, and his delegation was confident that the Ad 
Hoc Committee appointed by the Industrial Develop­
ment Board under resolution 38 (VII) would success­
fully finalize the details for their implementation. 
4. The suggested date (March 1975) and provisional 
agenda of the Second General Conference of UNIDO 
(see A/9016, para. 67) were acceptable to his delega­
tion; the adoption of draft resolution A/C.2/L.I293 
would help to improve the proposed agenda. Lastly, his 
delegation was grateful to the Government of Peru for 
offering to serve as host to the Conference, and it there­
fore supported draft resolutiori A/C.2/L.l292. 

5. Mr. MAKEYEV (Union of Soviet Socialist Repub­
lics) pointed out that industrial development was essen­
tial if the developing countries were to overcome the 
consequences of colonialism and neo-colonialism. Ac­
cordingly, the Soviet Union supported UNIDO in all 
activities designed to assist the developing countries to 
draw up industrial development plans, expand the State 
sector and utilize domestic and external resources in 
industrial development, and train national specialists. 
In the past year UNIDO had done much valuable work, 
but it was still not giving States effective assistance in 
the formulation of long-term industrial development 



162 General Assembly-Twenty-eighth Session-Second Committee 

plans or acting as the main co-ordinator of the industrial 
development activities of the United Nations system. 
6. Science and technology were of increasing impor­
tance in modern life, and even the most highly de­
veloped country could not be a leader in all fields. One 
of UNIDO's main tasks, therefore, should be to or­
ganize increased international co-operation in the field 
of industrial development, not merely between de­
veloped and developing countries, but also among de­
veloping countries themselves. UNIDO should make it 
easier for the developing countries to gain access to 
scientific and technical knowledge and experience. In­
dustrialization of the developing countries should not 
be seen merely as a process offundamental reconstruc­
tion of their economies and introduction of new tech­
niques; it was also governed by the need to create inde­
pendent economies in those countries, free from the 
influence of foreign capital and monopolies. 

7. While the solution to the problem of industrializa­
tion lay in the hands of the developing countries them­
selves, the United Nations, and particularly UNIDO, 
could and must contribute to that process. In that re­
spect, the main tasks facing UNIDO were to become 
the focal point for all United Nations industrial de­
velopment activity in accordance with General Assem­
bly resolution 2152 (XXI), and to play an active role in 
the field of industrial development along the lines rec­
ommended by the Group of High-Level Experts. 
Among practical measures of assistance to the develop­
ing countries, particular importance should be attached 
to the transfer of "appropriate technology" which 
would enable them to accelerate the implementation of 
their long:term development plans, husband their 
natural resources and currency reserves, and increase 
productivity and employment. UNIDO should also as­
sist in the training of national industrial specialists, 
expand its programmes of seminars and research and 
establish model industrial undertakings in the develop­
ing countries. 

8. With regard to the report of the Industrial De­
velopment Board on the work of its seventh session 
(A/9016), his delegation felt that the biennial pro­
gramme and the medium-term plan should be more 
closely linked with national plans through the simul­
taneous expansion of UNIDO's activity beyond the 
limits of pre-investment and the execution of individual 
projects. While supporting the Board's decision con­
cerning the expansion of aid to the least developed 
countries, his delegation considered the establishment 
of an industrial development fund, as recommended in 
decision II (VII), to be inappropriate, since it would 
result in a dissipation of resources. 

9. Along with its call for an increase in the efficiency 
of UNIDO, the Soviet Union would continue to make 
available to the developing countries its experience in 
fields of interest to them, including that of economic 
planning. The aid given by the Soviet Union to develop­
ing countries was of particular significance, since it was 
aimed primarily at improving substantially the situation 
of the working people, raising their living standards and 
expanding education and health services. The Soviet 
Union was currently a party to agreements on 
economic, scientific and technical co-operation with 45 
developing countries and had assisted in the execution 
of a large numb~r of development projects. It was also 
widely involved in the training of specialists of the 

developing countries, both locally and in its own educa­
tional institutions. The Soviet Union would continue its 
support of proven forms of economic and technical 
co-operation which were in full accord with the social 
and economic plans of the developing countries and 
guaranteed respect for their national sovereignty and 
their right to dispose of their natural resources. 
10. In its selection of professional and field staff, 
UNIDO still failed to observe the principle of equitable 
geographical distribution with regard to tjle socialist 
countries. He hoped that that situation would be speed­
ily remedied. His delegation could not accept the in­
crease in UNIDO's administrative budget and staff for 
1973 and subsequent years; UNIDO should increase 
productivity and reduce its administrative staff in 
favour of operational personnel. Decision II (VII), 
which recommended a UNIDO programme and budget 
separate from the United Nations budget, was unac­
ceptable to his delegation. Nor could it agree with the 
establishment of an IBRD/UNIDO Co-operative Unit 
(see A/9016, para. 156). His delegation favoured the 
holding of the Second General Conference at Lima and 
had no objection to the preliminary agenda approved by 
the Board (ibid., para. 67). 
11. No development effort could succeed if, as in the 
case of the Arab States, the developing countries con­
cerned were compelled to devote their efforts and re­
sources to repelling aggression. Accordingly, his dele­
gation fully supported the suggestion that UNIDO 
should not give assistance to countries which were 
committing acts of aggression against, and harming the 
interests of, the Arab States. The great needs of all 
countries in the field of industrial development made it 
necessary to seek new sources of financing. One poten­
tial source would be the savings realized from a reduc­
tion of the huge military expenditures with which States 
burdened themselves. In that respect, he drew atten­
tion to the urgent need to convene a world disarmament 
conference and to his country's proposal for a reduc­
tion of the military budgets of States permanent mem­
bers of the Security Council by 10 per cent and utiliza­
tion of part of the funds thus saved to provide assistance 
to developing countries (agenda item 102). The adop­
tion of that proposal would release substantial funds for 
aid to the developing countries over and above the 
amounts already provided through existing channels. 
12. Mr. HACHANI (Tunisia) recalled that his delega­
tion had already spoken on some aspects of the Board's 
report and on the Second General Conference, at the 
fifty-ftfth session of the Economic and Social Council. 
It wished now to express its concern at the far from 
encouraging results of the 1973 United Nations Pledg­
ing Conference on UNID0, 1 held on 23 October. He 
regretted that countries capable of doing so had not 
significantly increased their contributions and that 
those which refused to contribute had in most cases 
persisted in their refusal. States which believed in the 
importance of industry to development nevertheless 
denied UNIDO the financial and administrative re­
sources it needed, to the detriment of the developing 
countries. UNDP undoubtedly did valuable work in the 
field of industry, but there were too many calls on its 
limited resources for it to devote sufficient attention to 
what was an essential element of the national plans of 
the developing countries. 

1 See A/CONF.60{SR.I and 2. 



1541st meeting-29 October 1973 163 

13. His own country, for example, had as its over-all 
aim the achievement of an economic growth rate which 
would keep pace with population growth, provide ade­
quate employment and raise the standard of living and 
income levels. Accordingly, it believed that an organi­
zation such as UNIDO should assist the developing 
countries not only in practical matters but also in pol­
icy-making. That expansion of its functions should be 
matched by an expansion of its human a!J.d financial 
resources. In that respect, he supported the decisions 
taken at the seventh session of the Industrial Develop­
ment Board. He also urged an increase in the budget of 
UNIDO's regular programme of technical assistance, 
the granting to UN IDO of administrative autonomy and 
an increase in the number of its field advisers; none of 
those measures would prejudice the conclusions of the 
Second General Conference or the work on developing 
a long-range strategy. 
14. He was pleased to note that the Group of High­
Level Experts considered that UNIDO should be both 
an operational and a conceptual. organization. One as­
pect of UNIDO's future strategy should be the prohibi­
tion of aid to countries such as Israel, which forcibly 
occupied the territory of others in contravention of the 
Charter and the relevant resolutions of the United Na­
tions. He hoped that the Governing Council of UNDP 
had already recognized, in the case of Israel, that it 
would in any event be contrary to the Charter and to 
logic, to allow assistance from UNIDO or other agen­
cies to be used to consolidate an occupation which the 
United Nations condemned. 
IS. On the subject of the Second General Conference, 
his delegation was happy to become a sponsor of draft 
resolution A/C.2/L.l292. It strongly supported the 
view, expressed by several delegations and referred to 
in the Board's report (A/9016, para. 61), that "the em­
ployment aspects of the itldustrialization process ought 
to take a prominent place in the Work of the Confer­
ence". It welcomed the decision that the documenta­
tion for the Conference should include a comprehen­
sive report on the empkiyment aspects of industrializa­
tion in developing countries. He hoped that the Confer­
ence would open up new prosvects ih the field of inter­
national co-operation and help to identify the measures 
required to achieve the industrial development objec· · 
tives of the Second United Nations Development Dec­
ade. The Conference might also establish basic princi­
ples for an international charter on industrialization to 
be included in the draft charter on the economic right!? 

. and duties of States, proposed in UNCTAD resolution 
45 (IIn,2 and recommend specific measures concerning 
relations between developed and developing countrie"S. 
In that connexion, he had noted with interest the Ex­
ecutive Director's ideas on a more rational division of 
labour resulting fn beneficial co--operation between the 
developing countries wit.h their abund.ant manpower 
and natural resources and the developed countries with 
their · wealth and techrtology. Tunisia had· already 
adopted legislation to attract private investment and 
provide incentives to industries producing goods for 
export. · 

16. International co--operation should not be limited 
to relations between developed and developing coun­
tries, but should extend to relations between the de-

2 See Proceedings of the United Nations Conference on Trade and 
De1•e/opment, Third Session; vol. I. Report and Annexes (United 
Nations publication. Sales No. E.73.II.D.4). annex I.A. · 

vel oping countries themselves. In addition to the meas­
ures recommended in the Board's resolution 36 (VII) 
(see A/9016, annex II) the Conference should seek 
ways of aiding the developing countries to co--ordinate 
their marketing and production efforts at the regional 
and subregional levels. 
17. His delegation believed that the international 
community was entering a rich and promising period in 
the field of industry. It was in the hope that egoism 
would not prevail that it had joined in sponsoring draft 
resolutions A/C.2/L.l293 and A/C.2/L.l294. 
18. Mr. ZINAI (Algeria) thanked the Executive Di­
rector of UN IDO for his introductory statement (1537th 
meeting) and for his efforts to ensure that UNIDO 
fulfilled its purpose of assisting the developing coun­
tries. Algeria attached particular importance to 
UNIDO and was a member of the Industrial Develop­
ment Board and of the Ad Hoc Committee set up to 
identify ways of implementing the recommendations of 
the Group of High-Level Experts on a Long-Range 
Strategy for UNIDO. Although UNIDO had been es­
tablished to promote industrial development and inter­
national co-operation in the secondary sector, its ef­
fects on the industrial development of the developing 
countries had unfortunately been only marginal, owing 
to its lack of administrative autonomy, structural and 
budgetary restraints and the absence of a clearly de­
fined long-term strategy. 
19. His delegation felt that greater autonomy would 
enable UNIDO to increase and optimize its activities. 
Such administrative autonomy must obviously be ac­
companied by an increase in financial resources, if 
UNIDO was to co-ordinate all industrial activities ef­
fectively within the United Nations system. His delega­
tion therefore supported the Board's decisions I (VII) 
and III (VII). 

20. Contrary to several resolutions adopted by United 
Nations organs, particularly General Assembly resolu­
tions 2949 (XXVII) and 3005 (XXVII), and to the Inter­
national Development Strategy itself (resolution 2626 
(XXV)), which stated in paragraph 5 that the success of 
international development activities would depend in 
large measure on the elimination of the occupation of 
territories of any State, Israel was still receiving assist­
ance from UNIDO. 
21. His delegation supported most of the recommen­
dations in the report of the Industrial Development 
Board on the work of its seventh session (A/9016). It 
endorsed the recommendations made by the Group of 
High-Level Experts on a Long-Range Strategy for 
UNIDO, which underlined and analysed the main prob­
lems that would continue to arise throughout the Sec­
ond United Nations Development Decade. It must be 
borne in mind that any industrialization policy must be 
based on an identification of the major obstacles faced 
by the developing countries, such as technological de­
pendence, insufficient savings and deficits in the bal­
ance of payments: The non-aligned countries had 
stressed that foreign investment could be helpful when 
it suppiemented national efforts. Such investment 
should create employment and afford foreign exchange 
savings, and should have management decentralized 
away from the parent company. It should provide back­
ing for appropriate technology and should, of course, 
be effected .with due respect for the sovereignty of 
States and in conformity with national development 



164 General Assembly-Twenty-eighth Session-Second Committee 

priorities. His delegation therefore felt that foreign 
private investment should be excluded from those sec­
tors of the economy which each State, in the light of its 
own circumstances, considere(j strategic. 

22. His delegation thanked the Government of Peru 
for its offer to serve as host to the Second General 
Conference of UNIDO. Algeria was particularly glad 
that the Conference was to be held in a developing 
country which was embarking upon an industrialization 
process in accordance with national interests and was 
courageously following a policy of independence re­
garding the exploitation of its natural resources. It was 
to be hoped that the Conference, which would coincide 
with the mid-term review of progress in implementing 
the International Development Strategy, would make 
the international community more aware ofthe difficul­
ties faced by the developing countries in industrializa­
tion. Obviously, the success of the Conference would 
depend on the political will of States to achieve con­
crete results, and it would be a test of the international 
community's ability to work towards a new era based 
on more equitable relations. 

23. Mr. MASSONET (Belgium) noted that at its 
seventh session the Industrial Development Board had 
focused its discussions on two major problems, 
namely, the date of and arrangements for the Second 
General Conference of UNIDO, and follow-up action 
on the report of the Group of High-Level Experts on a 
Long-Range Strategy for UNIDO. Belgium would fur­
nish its views on the preparation for the Conference 
before the Permanent Committee of the Board, which 
would act as the preparatory committee for the Confer­
ence, met in December. It was particularly important 
that the Conference should be well prepared, and Bel­
gium had already given some indications concerning 
the documentation it would like to see on the agenda of 
the Conference. 

24. The Board had spent considerable time discussing 
the report of the Group of High-Level Experts (see 
A/9016, paras. 83-95). The conclusions of the Group, 
the members of which had widely differing geographi­
cal and political backgrounds, constituted an excellent 
basis for future work in the field of industrialization. 
The 27-member Ad Hoc Committee established under 
resolution 38 (VII) was well suited to continue the re­
search already begun, although Belgium would have 
preferred the Committee to be open to all Member 
States. Belgium would not attempt, as a member of the 
Ad Hoc Committee, to define a common strategy to 
meet the needs of all developing countries, because 
such a strategy would not take into account the various 
geographical factors and could not reach sufficiently 
specific conclusions. In his delegation's view, the em­
phasis should be on the need to make UNIDO activities 
more effective and to serve the cause of industrial de­
velopment directly. His delegation could, therefore, 
already state that it agreed to the implementation of 
recommendations I to IV which, if correctly im­
plemented, would strengthen UNIDO's activities. 

25. Care should be taken to ensure that the work of 
the Ad Hoc Committee was carried on in conditions 
most conducive to dialogue, without becoming an ex­
tension of the Board. The UNIDO secretariat should 
draft a short summary and appraisal of the way in which 
it carried out its operational activities. The conclusions 
of the Ad Hoc Committee thereon would be a useful in-

put for the Second General Conference, which would 
be devoted largely to the mid-term review of the Sec­
ond Development Decade. 
26. The Board had been unable to reach a consensus 
on decision II (VII) concerning administmtive au­
tonomy of UNIDO. General Assembly resolution 2152 
(XXI), under which UNIDO had been established, had 
been adopted unanimously. In his delegation's view, it 
would be only logical that any decision regarding 
amendments to UNIDO's statute should also be 
unanimously adopted. The examination of that ques­
tion requested by the Board should be carried out in 
that spirit. 

27. Decision III (VII), concerning industrial de­
velopment field advisers, had also been adopted. Bel­
gium had always taken great interest in the Special 
Industrial Services progmmme which the developing 
countries considered to be an important factor for their 
progress. His delegation thought that the SIS pro­
gramme was very important, and wished to emphasize 
the need to accelemte the adoption procedure for pro­
grammes. Not only should the 1970-l97llevel be main­
tained, but the number of projects should be increased, 
without there being any need for an increase in the 
number of field advisers. 

28. Mr. AL-KHUDHAIRY (Iraq) thanked the Ex­
ecutive Director of UNIDO for his introductory state­
ment at the 1537th meeting and for his sound and posi- · 
tive direction of UNIDO's activities. The peoples and 
Governments of the third world fully appreciated the 
importance of industrialization, without which there 
could be no true and comprehensive development, and 
realized that it called for profound economic and politi­
cal changes. In order to achieve industrialization, many 
developing countries had to wage a struggle against im­
perialist control, direct or indirect, over their industrial 
structure and the exploitation of their natural re­
sources. The sovereign right of developing countries to 
own, control and exploit their natural resources was a 
prerequisite for industrialization. His delegation looked 
forward to the Second General Conference of UNIDO 
as an occasion for defining the important elements as­
sociated with the industrialization process of the de­
veloping countries and the new and expanded role to be 
played by UNIDO. Among such elements were the 
recovery and use of natural resources by developing 
countries themselves, the role of multinational corpora­
tions in that process, industrial programming, and the 
question of assistance for the industrialization of the 
developing countries. His Government thanked the 
Government of Peru for its offer to serve as host to the 
Second General Conference and supported the recom­
mendation made by the Board in that connexion. Iraq 
would like to become a sponsor of draft resolution 
A/C.2/L.1292. 

29. His delegation was pleased to note that UNIDO's 
expenditure on direct assistance in industry to 
Governments of developing countries had risen by over 
25 per cent in 1972 as compared with 1971. However, it 
was disappointed to hear that UNIDO's operational 
activities in 1973 would be very limited. His delegation 
hoped that the factors referred to by the Executive 
Director as delaying UNIDO's programme would be 
eliminated as soon as possible so that industrialization 
programmes could be implemented speedily and effec­
tively. His delegation was glad to note the increase in 



154lst meeting-29 October 1973 165 

the number of industrial development field advisers and 32. His delegation endorsed the recommendations of 
hoped that UNDP could finance a further incre~se in the Group of High-Level Experts on a Long-Range 
the number of those advisers, whose presence m the Strategy for UNIDO, particularly recommendation VI 
field facilitated prompt contacts at the working level. concerning organizational and financial requisites. In 

30. His delegation was also pleased to note that co­
ordination and co-operation between UNIDO and 
other United Nations bodies and agencies was increas­
ing without problems. That was the only way in which 
the United Nations system as a whole could carry out 
the tasks expected of it by peoples and Governments. 
In his delegation's view, UNIDO should have closer 
contacts with the regional economic commissions, and 
its field advisers should act as liaison officers between 
UNIDO and those commissions. It was to be hoped that 
UNIDO would continue its contacts and increase its 
consultations with the United Nations Economic and 
Social Office in Beirut when it became the Economic 
Commission for Western Asia. His delegation was 
pleased to note that, according to annex I (para. 3) of 
the Board's report on the work of its seventh session, 
UNDP would call upon UNIDO to implement 199 pro­
jects in the 35 country programmes approved ~Y the 
Governing Council ofUNDP at its fiftee~th sess1~m. It 
was also encouraging to note that UNIDO s share m the 
total UNDP-financed assistance in those 35 countries 
would be over 10.4 per cent as compared with about 5 
per cent in previous years. 

31. However, he wished to make it quite clear that 
Iraq strongly opposed the granting of technical assist­
ance to Israel by UNIDO. Israel had been repeatedly 
condemned by the General Assembly and the Security 
Council for its aggressive expansionist acts against its 
neighbours and had continuously refused to abide by 
United Nations resolutions calling on it to withdraw 
from its illegal occupation of territories of three States 
Members of the Organization. Resolutions had been 
adopted in various forms calling on States and on 
bodies and agencies of the United Nations system not 
to grant any assistance to Israel that might enable it to 
consolidate its hold on the occupied Arab territories. 
Examples were General Assembly resolutions 2949 
(XXVII) and 3005 (XXVII). Recently, the Cot;1ference 
of Heads of State or Government of Non-Aligned 
Countries, held at Algiers (5-9 September), had con­
demned Israel's occupation of Arab territories, called 
for its immediate and unconditional withdrawal and 
called on all States to abstain from providing Israel with 
arms or any political, economic or financial support 
which might enable it to continue its aggressive and 
expansionist policy. The International Development 
Strategy itself stated that the success of international 
development activities would depend in large measure 
on the elimination of colonialism and occupation of 
territories of any State. The Administrator of UNDP 
had informed the Governing Council, at its fifteenth 
session, that UNDP assistance to Israel would not be 
used in the occupied Arab territories. His delegation 
asked that UNIDO should go further and should not 
extend any technical assistance to Israel, which could 
not be considered a developing country in need of such 
assistance. It had reached so high a level of industrial 
and technological advancement that it not only man­
ufactured arms for its own use against the Arab peoples 
but exported them to countries such as South Africa 
and Portugal and to the minority white regime of Ian 
Smith in Southern Rhodesia to be used against the 
freedom fighters of Africa. 

adapting its headquarters and field service structure to 
respond to the task of implementing the long-range 
strategy and in increasing its field presence, UNipO 
should follow the principle of equitable geographical 
representation in the appointment of its officers and 
should increase the number of officers from developing 
countries. Similarly, his delegation wished to draw at­
tention once again to the inequality in the distribution of 
technical assistance between the various geographical 
regions. In 1972, 35.5 per cent of UNIDO's technical 
assistance had been allocated to Africa, 22.2 per cent to 
Asia and the Far East, 17 per cent to the Americas and 
only 16.3 per cent to Europe and the Middle East. That 
unbalanced distribution should be corrected. Further­
more, the countries of the Middle East should be con­
sidered as a region that was separate from Europe. 
33. His delegation was alarmed by the fact that the 
over-all financial resources available to UNIDO were 
not sufficient to enable it to carry out its mandate effec­
tively, particularly in view of the increased number of 
industrial projects in the UNDP country programmes. 
Moreover, his delegation was disappointed by the con­
tinued refusal of many developed industrialized coun­
tries to make voluntary contributions directly to 
UNIDO. He appealed to those countries to reconsider 
their attitude and to contribute substantially to 
UNIDO, and he thanked those developed countries 
which had already done so. His Government for its part 
had pledged $12,500 a:t the 1973 United Nations Pledg­
ing Conference on UNIDO. 

34. Iraq wished to become a sponsor of draft resolu-. 
tion A/C.2/L.1293. 

35. Mr. POERWANTO (Indonesia) thanked the Ex: 
ecutive Director of UNIDO for his informative intro­
ductory statement. Like other developing countries, 
Indonesia had benefited from the activities of UNIDO 
and was fully aware of its valuable contributions to the 
process of industrialization of developing countries. In 
order to achieve the required 8 per cent increase in the 
industrial growth rate of the developing count~es, con­
siderable efforts must be made by the developmg coun· 
tries and the international community. UNIDO's con­
tribution in the mobilization and exchange of interna­
tional experience and know-how had proved invaluable 
to the industrial development of the developing coun­
tries. It was unfortunate that during the last two years 
the effectiveness of UNIDO's programmes had been 
limited by lack of resources. It was essential that 
UNIDO should have the resources to discharge its 
functions in an effective and rational manner. 

36. In his delegation's view, UNIDO should be made 
more responsible to the challenges of the time. Efforts 
to strengthen its structural and organizational condi­
tions were: therefore commendable, and it was appro­
priate that greater administrative autonomy should be 
accorded to UNIDO, in view of its increased respon­
sibilities. Furthermore, UNIDO should strengthen its 
co-operation with other organs of the United Nations. 
His delegation noted with appreciation General As• 
sembly resolution 2953 (XXVII), which called for close 
co-operation between UNIDO and UNDP. Frequent 
consultations between the Executive Director of 



166 General Assembly-Twenty-eighth Session-Second Committee 

UN IDO and the Administrator of UNDP could be con­
sidered an important step towards synchronizing the 
activities of the two organizations. 
37. His delegation's view on the long-range strategy 
for UNIDO was already known. The report of the 
Group of High-Level Experts was concise and could 
not, therefore, be expected to cover all aspects of the 
future policies and actions of UNIDO. However, it 
constituted a valuable basis for the elaboration of more 
comprehensive guidelines for UNIDO activities, with a 
view to meeting the expanding industrial needs of the 
developing countries. His delegation agreed with the 
Executive Director that it was more realistic to view the 
long-range strategy as a continuing process which 
would influence and guide UNIDO's activities as addi­
tional experience was gained through the implementa­
tion of its programmes and as additional efforts were 
made to gain a better perspective of the goals of indus­
trialization. In that connexion, his delegation supported 
the idea of holding a Second General Conference of 
UNIDO in 1975, in order to facilitate a more thorough 
elaboration of UNIDO's strategy. It was significant 
that the Conference would coincide with the mid-term 
review of progress in implementing the International 
Development Strategy and would therefore provide an 
opportunity for assessing the progress achieved with 
regard to the target set in the Strategy for the indus­
trialization of the developing countries. His delegation 
thanked the Government of Peru for its offer to serve as 
host to the Conference. 
38. His delegation whole-heartedly supported draft 
resolutions A/C.2/L.l292 and A/C.2/L.I293 and hoped 
that they would be adopted by consensus. It wished to 
join the sponsors of the latter draft resolution. 
39. In 1974, Indonesia would embark upon its second 
five-year development plan. While in the first five-year 
development plan the emphasis had been on· agricul­
ture. in the second plan a much higher rate of growth 
was envisaged in other sectors of the economy, notably 
mining and manufacturing, in an effort to broaden the 
basis of the economy. The objectives of the se~ortd 
five-year plan concerned employment, a more equita-. 
ble distribution of income and a more effective utiliza­
tion of natural resources. It was also intended to inten­
sify efforts to establish small-scale and cottage indus­
tries, with a view to providing employment for the rural 
population, a field in which UNIDO could provide as­
sistance. Indonesia hoped that it would continue to 
benefit from the services of a resident industrial adviser 
recently appointed by UNIDO, and that ~NIDO's field 
adviser programme would be expanded. 

40. Mr. BENNANI (Morocco) commended the Ex­
ecutive Director of UNIDO for his introductory state­
ment and his leadership of the organization. An in­
crease in UNIDO's financial and administrative re- · 
sources would undoubtedly have a direct influence not 
only on the promotion of industry in the developing 
countries but also on regional industrial integration and 
the international division of labour. His delegation be­
lieved that UNIDO could only fulfil its mandate satis­
factorily if it had complete autonomy. In that connex­
ion, it fully endorsed the recommendations of the 
Board, as reflected in draft resolution A/C.2/L.I294. 

41. UNIDO's activities should be more operational. 
The varied assistance given to developing countries in 
industrial planning must be parallel, if not equal, to the 

activities that UNIDO was called upon to carry out in 
regional industrial integration and the promotion of the 
international division of labour. It was surprising that 
among I ,900 projects affecting approximately 100 de­
veloping countries, there were no more than tO inter­
regional projects, requiring in all an expenditure of 
$377,000, or 9 per cent of UNIDO's total operational 
expenditure (A/9016, annex I, para. 9). Moreover, 
apart from a project relating to international subcon­
tracting, the interregional projects approved concerned 
short training programmes or seminars. In his 
delegation's view, greater attention sh9uld be given to 
interregional programmes and co-operation with re­
gional economic organizations. 
42. As stated in the report oft he Group of High-Level 
Experts, UNIDO's activities should be aimed at help­
ing to formulate industrial strategies which might lead 
to real changes in the situation with regard to the inter­
national division of labour. The holding of regular re­
gional industrial symposia, such as had been organized 
recently, would undoubtedly be of assistance in that 
respect. 
43. The Second General Conference of UNIDO 
would certainly consider those problems and discuss 
solutions to them. His delegation would like to become 
a sponsor of draft resolution A/C.2/L.l292 and com­
mended the Government of Peru for its generous offer. 
44. Mr. GEBRU (Ethiopia) said that his delegation 
fully agreed with the recommendations of the Group of 
High-Level Experts, including the proposal that 
UNIDO should assist effectively the developing coun­
tries in the formulation and execution of industrial 
policies and stnitegies. The role of UNIDO should be 
expanded with respect to the transfer of technology, 
particularly in.the field of product adaptation, choice of 
appropriate industrial technology, and the provision of 
assistance to develop indigenous technolo~ies suitable 
to the special conditions of each developmg country. 
UNIDO's activities were increasing to a level which 
justified an increase in the nutnber of field advisers and 
the neces.;aty budgetary requirements. 

45. The regional seminar on UNIOO operations for 
the least developed countries in Africa, held at Addis 
Abab11 from 29 January to 8 February 1973, indicated 
UNIDO's concern for the industrialization of those 
countries. His delega~ion endorsed resolution 37 (VII} 
as a furthet step towards that objective. Since one of the 
major criteria for the identification of the least de-· 
vel oped countries had been the percentage of manufac­
tures .in their export .trade, UNIDO's contribution to 
the efforts of those countries to raise their manufactur­
ing output was critical. In that connexion, his delega­
tion also supported decision I (VII) of the Board, which 
recommended.an increase in ·QNIOO's regulat.pro-

. gramme of. tec~·nical. assistahce in order to devote the 
s.liPfil~m'en~ary· reso~rtes to special measures in favour 

· of the least develo1Jed countries. 
. . . 

46. It had only belatedly been recognized that interna­
tional trade and industrial development were two sides 
of the. same coiri·, each with its own policy issues and 
problems. The question therefore arose whether 
UNIDO's role as an executing agency adequately met 
the aspirations of the developing countries in the field of 
industrialization, taking into account changes in inter­
national industrial development policies. Although in­
dustrialization was the primary objective of the de-



1541st meeting-29 October 1973 167 

veloping countries, and although they included indus­
trial policies in their national development plans, there 
was no organ within the United Nations system respon­
sible for formulating industrial development policy to 
provide an impulse to national industrial policies. Ac­
cordingly, UNIDO should be a forum where industrial 
policy issues at the international level were negotiated 
with a view to fostering industrial policy changes 
favourable to the developing countries. Unless the de­
veloping countries had the industrial capacity to engage 
in trade in manufactures and semi-manufactures, in­
cluding processed and semi-processed agricultural 
products, the elimination of tariff and non-tariff trade 
barriers would remain theoreti:al. The implementation 
of the generalized system of preferences had made it· 
abundantly clear that many developing countries were 
far from sufficiently industrialized to take advantage of 
the system. The multilateral trade negotiations to be 
undertaken under the auspices of GATT in 1974 might 
also demonstrate that the elimination of non-tariff bar­
riers on manufactures was highly hypothetical in a ma­
jority of cases. 
47. Adjustment assistance policies and measures, for 
example, fell directly within the purview of UNIDO. 
The organization could play a catalytic role in the at­
tainment of the target set in the International Develop­
ment Strategy with respect to manufacturing output 
and in the adoption of adjustment assistance measures 
to promote the mobility of labour and capital through 
the provision of employment exchanges, training 
facilities, siting of industrial plants, financial aid and 
technical services to industries. 
48. The development of international industrial pol­
icy should accompany the development of international 
trade policy in order to enable the developing countries 
to achieve a vertical diversification of their production 
processes. 
49. His delegation welcomed the forthcoming publi­
cation of volume V of the Industrial Development 
Survey ,3 covering the growth of industrial produc(ion, 
the main issues relating to industrial development and 
the interrelations between industrialization, interna­
tional trade, employment and finance. The developing 
countries share in industrial production had remained 
static for the past 15 years, despite the growth of indus­
try in those countries, and the consumption of indus­
trial goods remained concentrated in the industrialized 
countries, where the depletion of natural resources 
continued unchecked. As a result, the gap between the 
developed and the developing countries was being ac­
centuated and threatened to grow even wider. New and 
enlightened industrial development policies should be 
elaborated by the international community to bring 
about a more rational international division of labour 
and the spatial distribution of industries for optimal 
utilization of the labour and raw materials of the de­
veloping countries. The shift of industries to those 
countries would benefit developed and developing 
countries alike. 

50. The tendency among international financing in­
stitutions and donor countries to emphasize rural de­
velopment projects at the expense of industrial projects 
would have an impact on the industrialization of the 
developing countries. A proper balance must be estab­
lished between industrial growth and rural develop-

3 United Nations publication, Sales No. E.73.1I.B.9. 

ment, for they were mutually supportive processes 
which led to over-all economic growth. UNIDO was 
the appropriate body in the United Nations system to 
undertake the task of evolving policy measures for 
adoption by the international community to that end. 
51. His delegation hoped that the Second General 
Conference would resolve outstanding policy issues 
and problems in the field of industrial development, and 
fully endorsed draft resolution A/C.2/L. 1292. 

52. Mr. KIRSH! (Yemen) emphasized the crucial role 
of industrialization in transforming the economic and 
social structure and accelerating economic growth in 
the developing countries-inter alia, by creating mas­
sive employment opportunities-and said that Yemen 
placed great hopes in UNIDO, which was one of the 
most vital organs of the United Nations. His delegation 
was gratified to note that despite the limited resources 
at its disposal UNIDO had been able to achieve re­
markable results. 

53. With the technical assistance of UNIDO, his 
country had been able to identify priorities and had 
established an Industrial Promotion Unit within the 
Ministry of Economy to provide economic and techni­
cal assistance to entrepreneurs, and an industrial estate 
was being established with the assistance of UNIDO 
and IBRD. His delegation was gratified to note that 
UNIDO was paying closer attention to the problems of 
the least developed countries, and it welcomed resolu­
tion 37 (VII); in the interest of equality, it was important 
that paragraph 4 of that resolution should be im­
plemented. With regard to decision II (VII), his delega­
tion believed that, in view of UNIDO's growing re­
sponsibilities and in order to enhance its effectiveness, 
it should have greater autonomy in administrative and 
personnel matters. Considering the importance of in­
dustrial development field advisers, his delegation sup­
ported decision III (VII). It also supported draft resolu­
tions A/C.2/L.l292 and A/C.2/L.1293, and wished to 
join the sponsors of the latter draft resolution. 

54. Lastly, his delegation considered that, in view of 
Israel's defiance of the will of the international com­
munity, its denial of the rights of3 million Palestinians, 
its illegal occupation of the territories of three Member 
States and its collaboration with the racist regimes in 
Africa, it was not eligible for United Nations assist­
ance. 
55. Mr. TAYLOR (Sierra Leone) said that the review 
of UNIDO's activities during 1972 contained in' the 
report of the Industrial Development Board on the 
work of its seventh session (A/9016) provided a very 
encouraging picture of the work of the organization in 
spite of the constraints imposed by its small budget. In 
future, UNIDO should undertake projects for small­
scale rural industries which would have maximum so­
cial benefit. 

56. Despite the avowed intent of many of the richer 
countries to contribute to the process of industrializa­
tion in the developing countries, it appeared that there 
was a systematic attempt to prevent UNIDO from 
achieving its objectives. For example, the proposal that 
UNIDO should be given administrative and financial 
autonomy, which would increase the effectiveness of 
the organization, had not received the unqualified sup­
port it deserved. That suggested that those opposed to 
the proposal had paid insufficient attention to the report 



168 General Assembly-Twenty-eighth Session-Second Committee 

of the Group of High-Level Experts, which indicated 
that, because UNIDO had no budgetary powers, its 
decisions were delayed and modified and, in general, 
became inoperative. While administrative and financial 
autonomy in certain instances might not be desirable, it 
was definitely desirable and necessary in the case of 
UNIDO. The Committee should consider why General 
Assembly resolution 2823 (XXVI) had remained unim­
plemented. Similarly, in the case of several other items, 
his delegation would prefer to have ·a progress report 
and discussion each year on the implementation of res­
olutions pertaining to the Committee's work. Such 
discussions might be even more rewarding than the 
general debate, which sometimes tended to be a mere 
restatement of economic cliches. 

57. His delegation was somewhat concerned at the 
apparent reluctance of some Member States to increase 
the number of industrial development field advisers. 
The raison d'etre of UNIDO could be given proper 
emphasis by expanding the number, scope and function 
of those advisers. His delegation welcomed the priority 
given to co-operation among developing countries and 
hoped that an expanding and an autonomous UNIDO 
would help to promote such co-operation. Although it 
was true that there were serious implications in any 

attempt to depart from accepted practice regarding the 
geographical distribution of UNIDO's professional 
staff, a strong argument for tilting the balance in favour 
of the developing countries was that an intimate know­
ledge of sociological values and attitudes and their ef­
fect on industrial development could not be underesti­
mated. His delegation had no committed views on the 
matter, and his Government wished to study the ques­
tion further. 

58. UNIDO should receive all the financial and moral 
support it required, particularly at a time when the 
search.of the rich countries for a super-affluent world 
threatened to widen the gap between the developed and 
the developing countries even further, confirming that 
social and moral justice towards the third world was not 
an objective: One remedy was rapid and efficient adap­
tation of modern industrial technology in the develop­
ing world, a process in which UNIDO's role was 
unique. 
59. The CHAIRMAN announced that if there was no 
objection, he would take it that the Committee wished 
to adopt draft resolution A/C.2/L.l292 without a vote. 

The draft resolution was adopted. 

The meeting rose at 12.50 p.m. 

1542nd meeting 
. Tuesday, 300ctober 1973, at 3.10 p.m. 

Chairman: Mr. Zewde GABRE-SELLASSIE (Ethiopia). 

AGENDA ITEM Sl 

United Nations Confer~ce 'on Trade and Developtnerit 
(A/9003/Add.l (part l)j A/901S, A/9142, A/9213, 
A/C .2/L.l295): 

(a) Report of the Trade and Development Board 

1. Mr. PEREZ GUERRERO (Secretary~General of 
the United Nations Conference on Trade and De­
velopment) said that the world economic situation was 
still in the critical phase of uncertainty which had pre­
vailed for over two years. Although the danger of an 
acute crisis had diminished, a latent crisis still existed 
owing to inflation and the floating of cutrencies. The 
persistence of those phenomena was in itself an un­
healthy and disquieting sign, and it was, of course, the 
poor-and therefore most vulnerable-'-countries which 
were most seriously affected or threatened. 

2. Nevertheless, it was a .particularly opportune 
period for constructing aninteniational,economic or<Jer ·. 
on broad and firm foundations with a view to. attaining · 
truly international goals. The establishment of a new 
monetary system and the multilateral trade negotia­
tions were the essential components of the economic 
reform which the circumstances demanded and which 
should bring substantial benefits to all nations.lt would 
be dangerous, however, unduly to prolong the incuba­
tion period. In any event, the work of reform should be 
carried out within an institutional framework which 
was in harmony with the needs of the time. 

.. 

A/C.2/SR.l542 

3. :Hardly anybody was happy with the way in which 
the Second United Nations Development Decade had 
begun. With few exceptions, the rich countries had not 
done as much as they could to implement the Interna-

. tiona! Development Strategy (General Assembly reso­
lution 2626 (XXV)) and had not made the goals of the 
Strategy part of their national policies, as they should 
have. Most of the reservations of the rich countries, 
whoserole was of crucial importance for the success of 
the Strategy, remained and continued to hamper its 
success. It was to be hoped that the General Assembly 
could make its voice heard and would draw up clear and 
coherent guidelines for all Governments, whatever 
their economic and social system or their level of de­
velopment, but particularly for those in a position to 
provide assistance, whose own difficulties should not 
lead them to grudge their contribution. 

4. There were those who expressed a defeatist pes­
simism, but that attitude was not shared by the 
Governments of the Member States represented in the 
General Assembly, which mirrored the international 
community. The predominant feeling, he believed, was 
that the opportunity mankind was being offered could 
be seized by taking practical and sustained measures 
which would provide a way out of the intolerable situa­
tion of inequality and injustice which was jeopardizing 
the peace and prosperity of all. 

5. At the twenty-eighth session of the General As­
sembly the Governments of developed countries, in­
cluding some of the most powerful, had shown a will-




